
 

   

 
 
 
 
December 4, 2015 
 
 
Mr. Ben Lightsey 
Groundwater Assessment and Remediation Division 
Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality 
P.O. Box 2261 
Jackson, Mississippi 39225 
 
 
Re: Enpro Industries Former Holley Automotive Site, Water Valley, Mississippi, Remedial System 

Work Plan in Response to Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) Letters 
Dated August 21 and October 30, 2015. 

 
 
Dear Mr. Lightsey: 
 
Ecology and Environment, Inc. (E & E), on behalf of Mr. Joe Wheatley of EnPro Industries, Inc. 
(formerly Coltec Industries), has prepared the attached Remedial System Work Plan (Attachment A) for 
the Former Holley Automotive Site located in Water Valley, Mississippi.  The Work Plan was prepared in 
response to your letters dated August 21, 2015 and October 30, 2015 (included in Attachment A).  The 
Work Plan has been signed and sealed by an engineer licensed in the State of Mississippi.  
 
The attached Remedial System Work Plan focuses on retrofitting the Remedial System No. 2 in 
preparation for restarting the system to meet the updated USEPA Ambient Water Quality Criteria 
(AWQC) standard for TCE for the discharge of treated groundwater into Otoucalofa Creek.  

 
Remedial System No. 2 was designed to collect and treat contaminated groundwater that may potentially 
enteri Otoucalofa Creek. However, based on recent surface water data, Otoucalofa Creek is not currently 
being impacted by site groundwaters. Therefore, E & E is proposing to make the system fully operational 
and obtain the required NPDES permit. If surface water samples from the creek exhibit TCE 
concentrations exceeding the AWQC for two consecutive semiannual sampling events, the Remedial 
System No. 2 will be activated for the protection of the creek.    
  
The MDEQ letter from August 2015, and reiterated in the October 2015 letter, also requested a new 
groundwater well network to treat potential source areas. A windshield survey conducted in October 2015 
confirmed that no private wells were noted on properties in the vicinity of the plume;  properties are 
connected to the city water supply.  It is our understanding that no residential or commercial properties 
utilize site groundwater and therefore there are no receptors of the groundwater.  As there are no receptors 
for the site groundwater, human health is not being adversely impacted by the groundwater. E&E is 
proposing to continue site monitoring for natural attenuation with no additional wells added to the 
existing network at this time. As noted in the attached Remedial System Work Plan, this may be re-
evaluated once the results from the Vapor Intrusion Study are reviewed.  
 



    

Please feel free to call me at (850) 435-8925 or by email at selliott@ene.com if you have any questions or 
comments regarding the attached Remedial Work Plan. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Steven Elliott 
Project Manager, E & E 
 
Attachments 
 
 
cc: Joe Wheatley, Enpro 

John Fazzolari, E & E 
 Neil Brown, E & E 
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Site and System Background 

The Former Holley Automotive Facility has two groundwater treatment systems with a total of five 
recovery wells.  The recovery wells were installed along the leading edge of the trichloroethene (TCE) 
plume with the objective of providing hydraulic control and mass removal.  Recovery wells RW-1, RW-2, 
and RW-3 are piped underground to Remedial System No. 1, which is enclosed in a building located 
adjacent to RW-1.  Recovery wells RW-4 and RW-5 are piped underground to Remedial System No. 2 
located in a building adjacent to RW-4 (see Attachment 1).  Remedial System No. 1 and Remedial System 
No. 2 utilize packed air stripping towers for groundwater treatment prior to discharging previously to 
the Otoucalofa Creek under National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit number 
MS0045641.  

Currently, the location of the recovery wells utilized by Remedial System No. 1 are not ideal for 
contaminated groundwater recovery and will not be part of this Work Plan. Remedial System No. 2 and 
recovery wells RW-4 and RW-5 provides sufficient coverage of the northern boundary of the TCE plume, 
just south of the Otoucalofa Creek. It should be noted that surface water samples taken from the creek 
have only had intermittent detections of TCE historically. In addition, TCE has not been detected in 
surface water samples collected over the past three sampling events.  However, based on current 
remedial system location and configuration, Remedial System No. 2 will be modified and prepared for 
use as described in further sections of this Work Plan.  

In addition to this Work Plan, a vapor intrusion (VI) study work plan for the site has been submitted to 
the MDEQ for their review.  Once approved, the VI study will be conducted.  Once the results the VI 
results have been obtained and analyzed, the need for modifications, beyond what is proposed in this 
work plan, will be evaluated. 

 

Work Plan Objectives 

The objective of this Work Plan is to retrofit Remedial System No. 2 in preparation for its use to meet 
the updated USEPA Ambient Water Quality Criteria (AWQC) standard for TCE (0.6 µg/L, revised from 2.5 
µg/L in June 2015) for the discharge of treated groundwater into Otoucalofa Creek.  

 

Remedial System No. 2 Modifications  

During its operation, Remedial System No. 2 reduced recovered groundwater concentrations of TCE to 
below laboratory method detection limits prior to discharge. Remedial System No. 2 was shutdown 
several years ago due to fouling of recovery well lines and the buildup of sediment in the towers. It was 
also suspected that the recovery system was actually drawing the plume toward the creek.   

Prior to restarting Remedial System No. 2, the system will need to be modified and retrofitted to 
accommodate new components (such as discharge pump, tower pump, recovery well pumps, new 



tower float modules and controls, new discharge meter, and some interior plumbing). A process flow 
diagram is shown in Figure 1. Additionally, programming of the system controls will be performed to 
optimize the towers efficiency.   

It is anticipated recovery wells RW-4 and RW-5 will continue to be utilized by Remedial System No. 2.     

 

System Restart 

Following completion of system modifications and retrofitting, Remedial System No. 2 will be 
temporarily restarted. During the restart, influent and effluent treatment samples will be collected for 
analysis of volatile organic compounds (VOCs) using United States Environmental Protection Agency 
(USEPA) Method 8260 and additional parameters required by the NPDES permit application (i.e. pH, 
TSS). This will aid in determining the effectiveness of the modifications and the system as a whole. 
Effluent TCE concentrations should be below applicable criteria (AWQC) for discharge into Otoucalofa 
Creek. Treated effluent will be stored on-site in above tanks and/or drums of sufficient size to 
accommodate the restart procedures.  Upon receipt of analytical results, the treated effluent will be 
shipped off-site to an appropriately licensed treatment disposal facility. 

Following evaluation of the analytical results and receipt of the renewed the NPDES permit, Remedial 
System No.2 will be available to be restarted for the protection of Otoucalofa Creek when surface water 
TCE concentrations in the creek indicate a need for the system (i.e.  concentrations exceed the AWQC 
for two consecutive sampling events).  

 

NPDES Permit 

The system previously operated under NPDES permit MS0045641, while discharging treated water to 
the Otoucalofa Creek.  Due to shutdown of the treatment system, the NPDES permit expired. Discharge 
Monitoring Reports continue to be submitted monthly reflecting a “zero discharge” status. Prior to 
restarting the system permanently, the NPDES will be reapplied for. Results from the effluent samples 
will be used to prepare the NPDES permit renewal forms.   

 

Schedule 

Based on the modifications and retrofitting of Remedial System No. 2 startup date, startup of the 
treatment system, collection and analysis of analytical results, and application of the NPDES permit, E & 
E anticipates the Work Plan can be completed by July 2016. This is completion date is contingent upon 
receipt of the renewed NPDES permit.  MDEQ will be notified of changes to the schedule.  

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 1 – Process Flow Diagram 
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Attachment 1 

Site Topographical Map 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Attachment 1      Site Location Map
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Attachment 2 

MDEQ Letter Dated August 21, 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 









 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 3 

MDEQ Letter dated October 30, 2015 
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